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COMMISSIONER:   Good afternoon.  Prof Artz, I see that yours is up but we were going to call 
Ms Vetten first.  Is that alright, not inconvenient for you?  Okay. Ms Vetten.  Ms Bornman, you 
are going to manage from there, are you? 
MS BORNMAN:   Yes, Commissioner, I think I’ll be okay. 
COMMISSIONER:   Okay, good.  Well, welcome once again. 
MS VETTEN:   Thank you. 
COMMISSIONER:   Thank you very much again for the second report that you put before the 
Commission on an issue that the Commission considers to be very important.  I’m not quite 
sure, you’re obviously aware about the public and you still have no objection to your name and 
evidence being made public? 
MS VETTEN:   No, no, I don’t. 
COMMISSIONER:   No you don’t, okay, and I may I now put you under oath or under 
affirmation? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes. 
COMMISSIONER:   Okay, happy to go under oath, no objection? 
MS VETTEN:   I’m sorry, I’m struggling to hear you. 
COMMISSIONER:   You’re struggling to hear, are you? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes. 
COMMISSIONER:   Would you prefer to be affirmed rather than the oath or do you…? 
MS VETTEN:   Ja, I’d like to affirm, thanks. 
LISA VETTEN:   (Affirmation) 
COMMISSIONER:   Thank you very much, Ms Bornman? 
EXAMINATION BY MS BORNMAN:   Thank you, Commissioners.  Ms Vetten, on the 11 
February of this year you gave oral evidence before this Commission as part of phase one of 
its work.  Could you please begin by reminding us of the key findings that you made with 
regards to the way in which domestic violence and sexual offences are handled by the three 
Khayelitsha police stations that are relevant to this inquiry? 
MS VETTEN:   Certainly.  I my report I only really dealt with domestic violence so my 
subsequent comments on sexual offences are new and relate to a reading of the record and 
other documentation that was sent to me. 
 But in terms of the report that I submitted at the time my conclusions in relation to the 
Domestic Violence Act was that they certainly were not complying with the registers in terms of 
what is set out in the national instructions and the Domestic Violence Act but there also 
appeared from the statements that have been made a lack of attention to the necessary 
procedure that was being – the way it should have been followed and victims were also not 



being treated in the manner in which they ought to have been and also I think still some very 
serious questions around the quality of detective work and there was also, I think, a very big 
question as to how much domestic violence was being underreported by the station.  So those 
are the gist of my general conclusions in relation to domestic violence. 
 In relation to my perusal of the documentation around the FCS units they certainly didn’t 
appear to be meeting and  handing the quality of justice that is demanded by rapes survivors 
and I think that was an opinion shared by the Provincial Commissioner Harri herself, it’s not 
even really my opinion. 
 We also have the actual inspection report of Brig Mokura(?) where he describes 
Khayelitsha FCS as the worst performing unit and as one which is bringing the whole FCS 
component down.  So quite clearly the police themselves have very serious concerns about 
what’s going on in Khayelitsha in relation to the FCS units. 
MS BORNMAN:   Thank you.  Now in your recommendations report that is before the 
Commission you address what you believed to be the reasons for these inefficiencies which a 
tone of late sort of potentially a poor relationship between the police and the community that 
they serve and at paragraph 2 of your report you state that these inefficiencies and injustices 
are multiple and intellect and they are as a result of the interaction between various factors 
including the individual police officers concerned, their working environment, their working 
conditions and then management and oversight. 
 Could you please elaborate for us on the issues that you believe to be relevant to 
individual police officers? 
MS VETTEN:   Certainly.  I think if we look at individual officers and obviously their responses 
and the way behave are formed in the interaction with what’s going on around them but if you 
look at those individual officers as a starting point it wouldn’t seem that they’ve been 
adequately trained and I base that assessment on looking at the numbers that were provided 
in the report versus the actual numbers of officers at the station and looking at the completion 
of the registers.   
 There certainly didn’t seem to be sufficient training and if one looks at the level of 
supervision that was – or oversight that was taking place on the registers, clearly whoever was 
checking those registers didn’t seem to know what they should be checking for and if you look 
at the notes where they were telling their officers don’t’ fill it out like this, fill it out like this, you 
don’t have to do this, you can do that, clearly showed they hadn’t understood the obligations 
properly. 
 So, I mean, that looked very much like a question of not understanding rather than poor 
performance and therefore a matter of poor training and I think when you have that kind of 
combination within a broader policing context that is a little bit reluctant to deal with domestic 
violence at the best of times, it’s only going to necessarily make it worse. 
 And I think the other issues that even where individuals are clearly not doing right thing, 
for whatever reason, management is not necessarily taking the necessary steps that would 
allow those individuals to do a better job. 
 And then I think if we look at the FCS officers and we look in particular at Jeanine 
Josias’ testimony as well as that of Col Harri, those individual officers are clearly not doing 
well, they seem – clearly they’re treating, they seem to be treating complainants in a very 
unsatisfactory unjust manner but if one looks at the kind of symptoms that Jeanine Josias is 
observing at the way they’re behaving, you are clearly talking about individuals who are very 
significantly stressed and haven’t been, I think, given the kind of tools that enable them to 



manage the stress and although in an environment that is in any way going to distress them.  If 
anything, it’s compounding it very significantly.   
 So one of the distinctions I want to draw just looking at the kind of solutions that the 
police are talking about is that burnout is different to vicarious traumatisation and it’s possible 
that you have your FCS officers at least who are suffering from both. 
 Vicarious traumatisation arises from a content of their work, the exposure to rape and 
domestic violence whereas burnout would be related to the degree of control that they feel 
over the circumstances of their work and I think if you’re working in the environment they 
describe where you constantly overloaded and you cannot do a good job and you cannot stop 
the number of new dockets coming in you clearly don’t feel that you have that much control so 
there are two problems here which are slightly different although closely interlinked and 
reinforcing each other I think as one of the reasons why they are handing out poor treatment. 
MS BORNMAN:   Could you tell us a bit about what you believe to be problematic with regards 
to the SAPS working environment in general in Khayelitsha? 
MS VETTEN:   Well if you look at the reference to numbers of dockets that they are carrying I 
don’t think it’s humanly possible to begin to do an acceptable job.  
 I think you will see a couple of things happening which you see happening in other 
stations the people feel they cannot cope with their workload is they start looking at cases and 
making judgments on which one – if you performance can be measured by arrests and 
convictions you’re going to start making judgment calls around which cases are going to result 
in convictions and which are ones are going to be harder.  You’re going to look at the cases 
which are going to take more of your time versus those which are quick.   The quick ones tend 
to be cases where the victim and the perpetrator are known, the long ones are the (indistinct – 
speaking too fast) so you’ve now got to go and draw up identikits, you’ve got to look for 
somebody, etcetera. 
 So those cases get dropped in favour of doing what is quick, what you can do quickly 
and what is manageable so you have situation I think where you are potentially reinforcing 
rape stereotypes because they act as a convenient shorthand, oh, she was dressed like this, 
she was here, probably not going to be believed in court, I have my doubts about her, let me 
go for this one, this one, I’ll have less work. 
 So I think you have a set of working conditions that reinforce miss stereotypes around 
rape that reinforce pro-treatment because eventually the way to cope with being traumatised is 
to emotionally distance yourself from the people you deal with judging them. 
 So if you judge a rape complainant and say she deserved it by the way she’s dressed 
you don’t have to feel sympathy for her, then you’re not emotional affected any longer. 
 So I think they reinforce that particular procedure.  Never mind just the quality of work 
that is going on. 
 I think also if we look at the levels of management and supervision, those wouldn’t 
appear to be adequate.  There’s some – certainly within Dr Josias’ testimony there seems to 
be questions around why was this not done, why was that not done, but there are absolutely 
no consequences. 
 So – and I mean I come to that later in my report as to why there may be no 
consequences but you’re not going to improve performance if you simply allow that to keep – 
by commenting on it but then doing nothing about it. 
MS BORNMAN:   And do you have an opinion with regards to the amount of detectives 
working in the FCS units? 



MS VETTEN:   It certainly wouldn’t seem to be enough, I mean, you can just see from Col 
Harri’s testimony that Khayelitsha has this massive backlog.  If I understood the stats correctly 
and I do stand be corrected that I may not have they seem to be running at a case load of – a 
backlog of up to a 1 000 dockets and it would seem then that periodically they’re having to 
bring in new detectives in order to help produce that backlog but, I mean, that’s crisis 
management, it’s not addressing the underlying problem which is very serious understaffing.  
So you can bring in people temporarily, you will reduce it but if you take them away then those 
number inevitably going to creep up. 
  And I think the other problem which I think the Commission already asked about this, 
why do you remove one of the best performing people from a unit that’s struggling and relocate 
elsewhere? 
 So I think there are some quite serious questions about management, how you 
structure and support your detectives, the kind of supervision you provide, the way that you go 
about doing your work. 
MS BORNMAN:   You’re speaking quite a bit about management and can you tell us a bit 
more about what you consider to be the management and oversight problems at the 
Khayelitsha police stations? 
MS VETTEN:   On one level it’s a little bit difficult  to do that because it wouldn’t appear and 
I’m basing this in the documentation I received.  It’s unfortunate that no – the actual head of 
the FCS units and senior managers didn’t appear in order to explain from their perspective 
what was going on so one doesn’t have that picture. 
 But, I mean, the picture that you get from reading the inspection reports, Col Harri’s 
testimony and Dr Josias’ testimony is that problems are noted but nothing is done about it and 
there may be two reasons for that.  The one is that when somebody is performing poorly, if 
they have such an unreasonable workload it’s actually very difficult to discipline because they 
can’t be reasonably expected to perform under those circumstances.  I think that makes 
discipline very difficult.  So that could be one of the facts that’s contributing to why sanctions 
don’t follow when somebody fails to carry out instructions like take fingerprints, complete a kit 
or do whatever necessary or for whatever reasons that are unknown, management seems to 
unable to take corrective action when they should and I was certainly struck about by why Col 
Harri can make a comment about the pathetic nature of the management at Khayelitsha but 
seems quite unable to do anything about it. 
 So I mean for me there is a question as to what is it that prevents you as managers 
from exercising the authority that you must if you are going to placed in a management 
position. 
MS BORNMAN:   In paragraph 2.6 of your report you talk about fairly changes in management. 
MS VETTEN:   Hm. 
MS BORNMAN:   Can you elaborate on that please? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes, I think if you look at some of the prior transcripts there seems to have 
been a fairly consistent leadership who was acknowledged as being effective and good and 
Khayelitsha.  Then if I think if you look at from 2000 onwards, 2010, you got a change every 
couple of months up to a year somebody new is coming in and again if you read the testimony, 
the current head of the command of the unit appears to be absent quite often, one doesn’t 
know why, but constant absenteeism is another sign of stress or something else going on and 
then other people being brought in to assist that person. 
 So there again one is seeing that management is either not there, can’t seem to do 



what it’s doing, there are no consequences when they don’t do what they’re supposed to do. 
MS BORNMAN:   Okay.   Let’s turn now to your actual recommendations with regards to 
improving first of all the implementation of the Domestic Violence Act. 
MS VETTEN:   Ja. 
MS BORNMAN:   At the three police stations.  What do you believe would improve 
management and oversight firstly at these police stations? 
MS VETTEN:   Well, I think there’d be – there would be a couple things, is if you have a 
problem with management who is ever overseeing lower levels of management need to take 
responsibility and accountability, so I think one has to be looking the cluster commander as 
well as the Provincial Commissioner needs to be looking at some of these issues and then I 
think you have your other oversight to make external oversight mechanisms which would be 
the Western Cape Department of Community Safety and you would also have your Community 
Policing Forum and I think if you read the Acts, they do play – they have an oversight function. 
 And also – I mean, I’ve worked with organisations where we take the Department of 
Performance Monitoring Evaluation’s framework on citizen monitoring and we’ve used that as 
well to monitor police station so I think you could have a whole range of structures who could 
be looking more closely at performance.  And there would be range of things that they 
could then be monitoring. 

I think one of the most important things would be to start with the current Domestic 
Violence Act audit tool which was developed by the civilian secretariat of police and I think it 
could potentially be within the scope if you read the constitution and the powers it gives the 
province, it could be within their scope to adapt that took to specifically meet the province’s 
need and there’d be a couple of things that they could do. 

The first would be they ask a general question about who has been training.  It needs to 
be made more specific.  How many people from which components have been on training 
within the last six months or last 12 months because in that way you know – you can actually 
measure an improvement and you can also check that training is going to the right people 
because it’s not uncommon to send – okay, we need to have 20 people trained from the 
station, who is not doing anything, let’s haul out the admin staff and then we fill the numbers 
even though the admin staff are never ever going to actually use the training.  

So if I think one modified to look more precisely at the training that would be useful.  I 
think if there was a better match between, for example, looking at the 508A entries and the 
508B entries must correspond so therefore on the audit tool you need to have blocks that allow 
you to check that.  So, I mean, that would be another simple change that they could make. 

The other thing I think they should be doing is if you’ve checked the register and you’re 
picking up problems you need to then be matching that with the list of disciplinary actions.  
You’ve picked up all these problems which theoretically could constitute misconduct, now let’s 
go and look at the disciplinary register and see has disciplinary action been taken.  If there isn’t 
there is a mismatch. 

So I think if one adapted that tool I think one could bring in a whole range of other 
suggestions and other role players you could make suggestions, your tool would measure 
more precisely what is going on and pinpoint more exactly where improvements would need to 
be made. 
MS BORNMAN:   In paragraph 3.4 of your report you talk about the standardisation of 
corrective measures and sanctions.  Could you elaborate on that point for us please? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes, because if you have – if I go back to what I looked at, one sees numerous 



non-compliance with regulations around how the registers and the 508As are supposed to be 
kept but then you look at the disciplinary records I was provided and you see maybe 22 or 
maybe eight sets of disciplinary actions taken.  There seems to be a bit of mismatch there, so I 
think if you started to say – so the standardisation would be important because you’d be able 
to – what is important in discipline is that if you do something wrong consequences should 
always follow.  If they only occasionally follow sometimes and only for some people that says 
that discipline is terrible inconsistent and it encourages you to take a chance because it’s such 
a haphazard process. 
 So that’s why I think it’s important to see are there – are consequences consistent, are 
they constant and are they always guaranteed because once that starts to happen people will 
do it because they know there will be consequences, it won’t be case of oh well, so and so is 
on duty today, they never bother, so I’ll get away with this. 
MS BORNMAN:   You heard the witness talk about unannounced visits and announced visits 
and there was some talk about the benefits and disadvantages of such visits, do you have an 
opinion about the extent to which unannounced visits and improve monitoring and evaluation 
of compliance with the Domestic Violence Act and the duties contained in that Act? 
MS VETTEN:   I think unannounced would be very important to prevent you from quickly filling 
out and completing updating your registers the night beforehand making sure that the victim 
empowerment room looks beautiful and making sure that your best staff are available to 
answer questions that everybody behaves on the day. 
 I personally have undertaken quite a lot of station monitoring, we do this, as I mentioned 
earlier, as part of organisations, the Sugamisa(?) campaign, we monitor stations and it’s 
incredibly interesting to arrive unannounced and note who is drunk on duty, watch police 
officers screaming and shouting and telling – I’ve actually observed this - rape survivors to get 
out or asking them what they’re wearing because they don’t know who you are, to be asked to 
see the victim friendly room and I find somebody sleeping in there or note that it’s been locked 
and the person who has got key is not on duty and cannot be found, so quite clearly – and 
when you ask for documentation the person behind the counter has no idea what you’re talking 
about, has to go and find four or five other officers to come and explain. 
 So I think unannounced certainly has its place and you can pick the façade of 
compliance and knowing what you’re doing apart. 
MS BORNMAN:   Let’s talk about your recommendations with regard to individual officers and 
their working environment.  What do you think could be done to improve?  
MS VETTEN:   Well, I think if you look at the problems of training it would be useful to do an 
audit in that station as to who has been on training but it would be probably useful to also have 
some sort of test around what do you know because you can go on training and sleep through 
it, so it’s also important to match that with some sort of testing to see do you actually know 
what you – did you actually absorb anything while you were away on training and I think once 
you have a sense of – we have x number of staff of which x percent have been on training you 
then can say alright, we have another 12 months or 9 months left of the year, the following 
people will need to go on training for the rest of the year so you can start to develop a training 
plan and get away from this very indiscriminate training.  So I think that could be things you 
could do to address deficiencies in knowledge. 
 I think when you come to the FCS units it seemed to me that one should investigate the 
possibility that you are dealing with people who are depressed, burnt out and traumatised and 
will not be functioning at all well because their emotional resources are too depleted for them 



to do an adequate job and I think under those circumstances – and will have to do it in a 
respectful way because I think when people are not feeling at their best you don’t want to 
come along and reinforce the idea that they are worthless human beings so I think one in a 
respectful way was to then do some of the standardised inventories that you do around 
burnout, depression and vicarious trauma and be able to assess what their levels are you 
could then discuss with that person.   Only, I would suggest that this be done by an outside 
agency given the very well-documented police concerns around what happens to that 
information  internally. 
 I mean, I think one could work with the university, for example, who could to that, who 
could then discuss directly with this person, okay, these are what your results said, what are 
your options, what could you do about them and could explore with people if they wanted the 
options, you know, if they had quite serious depression, the options of medication or whatever.   
 So there would be range of things that you could do and where you could give 
somebody that information that they could then decide what to do with and if they wanted to 
then have the police themselves informed. 
 And then I think one could discuss with them again in a respectful manner what are the 
options that you would like to follow and I mean, you could look at different things, like you 
could rotate people on their duties. 
 That way you can take somebody right out of the frontline where they might be under 
very difficult circumstances every day but go and do different duties for a while which might 
give them the necessary break. 
 Some people may be at the point where they actually need to go and do different work 
and it’s harmful for them to continue in this particular manner.  So I mean that you could do 
and again one would have to do that in a way that it doesn’t make it look like this person’s not 
coping because they’re in conditions which make it hard for them to cope, it’s not a personal 
comment on their ability, for instance. 
 So I think those would be some of the things that one could do to help assist those 
particular individuals and hopefully with better assistance they would then become better at 
what it is that they do. 
MS BORNMAN:   You’ve spoken briefly about training and then paragraph 3.9 of your report 
you talk about a recommendation where you believe that the CPF members should also attend 
training. 
MS VETTEN:   Yes.  In fact I did something like this myself some three years ago with some 
CPFs in Gauteng.  We trained the police, the CPF and organisations in the area jointly around 
the Domestic Violence Act where we went through these are what the police’s duties are, if 
you look at the relevant sections of the Act, you as the CPF, it would be within your powers to 
have a look at the register every week and see what’s going on in the register. 
 Discipline might be a different matter because the police might sometimes argue that 
discipline is an internal issue between employer and employee and therefore it has nothing to 
do with external people but, you know, one could have a discussion around that.   
 They could be doing that, they could be matching the 508As they could be checking 
regularly what’s going on in the rooms.  I think there’s a real need to figure out what is – that 
the CPF doesn’t start to get used as a domestic violence mediation centre which is what also 
happens.  People come in, police don’t want to deal with and CPF sits and mediates which is 
not what the Domestic Violence Act says should happen. 
 So it’s quite useful to be able to train altogether to say whose role is what, what can you 



do – because there can sometimes be tensions between the station and the CPF, talk about 
how do we manage those tensions because you’ve obviously got to work together but you 
have particular roles and if difficulties and tensions arise how are we going to deal with it in a 
constructive manner. 
MS BORNMAN:   So would it be correct to say that your suggestion is that if CPFs are trained 
correctly they could in fact play an oversight role? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes. 
MS BORNMAN:   It’s just with oversight monitoring and evaluation? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes because I think ideally you’d want three tiers of oversight, you’d have local 
level, you’d have provincial and you’d have national and at local level you’d have your CPF 
and one of my suggestions here as well is that when you have the provincial audits of the 
stations that actually they shouldn’t just be talking to the police they should also be 
interviewing and having a chat to the CPF, what’s the CPF’s observation and if there are 
organisations in the area they should also be saying to them what’s your observation because 
then you’re kind of triangulating data, you’re not just getting it from a group of people who have 
a great interest in the outcome. 
MS BORNMAN:   Thank you.  Now let’s deal briefly with your recommendations regarding the 
Khayelitsha SAPS response to sexual offences in particular.  Do you have any additional 
recommendations with regards to management and oversight and how that can be improved? 
MS VETTEN:   As I said, the absence of their commentary makes it quite difficult to figure out 
what the problem is there so it’s quite hard to make particular recommendations.  So my 
though there would be to actually do some sort of assessments as to why they cannot act.  
They don’t carry the kind of dockets that the investigating officers do so it seems – an 
explanation of work overload seems a bit of a hard one to sustain, so therefore I think if they’re 
not managing then it does seem to be more an issue of performance and if it’s that then the 
police need to do the standard things you usually do. 
 One is that people can’t perform a managerial role, you either send them on training in 
order to be able to do so and you provide with necessary supervision that enables them to 
perform better or you take the necessary disciplinary and other corrective action that needs to 
be taken when performance is not what it should be.  But you certainly don’t complain and do 
nothing about it because it gives the message that there are no consequences. 
 And I think just as a follow on to that, I think just noticing the police oversight report, it 
looks like it was sent to the police six months after the inspection actually happened which is 
somewhat pointless.  I think if you’re going to go and do an inspection you must give the 
results quickly and you must ask a response and corrective action quickly.  If you allow things 
to drag out and delay you’re not going – you’re only allowing problems to further entrench 
themselves. 
MS BORNMAN:   Thank you.  Ms Vetten, do you have a view with regard to who the key role 
players will have to be when we’re looking at the implementation of your recommendations?   
MS VETTEN:   I would think it would very important to clearly obviously have the police and 
the CPF there but I think there must be ways found in which to bring in the community. 
 Now community is one of these nice broad vague terms that can often obscure and 
exclude far more than it includes, so I think one would need to be quite specific about who do 
we mean by community and I think community should include representatives of LGBT, i.e. 
organisations, organisations who perhaps represent the interests of migrants and refugees 
who live in the area, women’s organisations, children’s organisation so that you have a spread 



of the various communities who live within the geographical locality of Khayelitsha who can the 
perspective from their end of what it’s like to be on the receiving end of policing so you’re 
getting a more 360 degree picture of what is going on. 
 So I think, for example, if you wanted to look at something like creating community 
domestic violence project or reforms around how the police deal with domestic violence, it will 
be important to bring all those actors in to talk about the different roles they could play. 
MS BORNMAN:   And do you have a view with regards to the role that national SAPS as well 
as provincial structures can play? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes, I think national SAPS – I mean, I haven’t put such recommendations in 
here because that is national SAPS’ purview but national SAPS could be looking at the things 
like are the current national instructions, registers and documentations as effective as they 
could be, could they be streamlined, do they capture the necessary and sufficient information?  
That is a national competence and that is something that national SAPS should be looking at 
because I don’t think it can be changed at local level because these are legal mandates. 
 Things that can be looked at the provincial level is what is the provincial performance 
and I think that the provincial legislature has not been brought into this picture sufficiently 
because while we have the – we have the national assembly where the police provide their six 
monthly reports and there’s discussion, there’s no reason why that cannot happen at provincial 
legislature level, you have your committee that deals with provincial safety and security issues, 
so they too could come and ask the Provincial Commissioner to come and report on what has 
been collected by Western Cape community safety, what has been collected from the reports 
and they could then call those individual station commissioners and stay come and tell us what 
you have done.  So I think that could well fall within their competence as well. 
MS BORNMAN:   Just a last question.  You mentioned in your report in paragraph 4.7 that any 
recommendation that is adopted should in fact be reviewed within a year of its implementation, 
could you elaborate on that? 
MS VETTEN:   I think that would be incredibly important because you want to first check was 
the recommendation effective, did it actually understand the problem and address it 
adequately? 
 And second – and you also want to check that there had been no unintended and 
unanticipated consequences as a result of your recommendations because obviously it’s 
untested at the time you make the recommendation so that you can constantly be adjusting 
and be more responsive to the environment and what’s changing and what’s happening. 
MS BORNMAN:   Thank you.  Thank you, Commissioners, I have no further questions. 
NO FURTHER QUESTIONS BY MS BORNMAN 
COMMISSIONER:   Thanks, Ms Bornman.  Mr Sidaki?  Mr Hathorn, are you going to go next?  
Ms Mayosi?  Okay, thank you. 
CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS MAYOSI:   Thank you, Commissioners.  Ms Vetten, the issue 
of victim support both for survivors of rape and victims of domestic violence comes out clearly 
in your report as being one of the aspects in which SAPS is sorely lacking. 
 If I may just remind you on this aspect of the evidence of one of the community 
witnesses.  There is the experience of a woman called NQ, for example – Commissioners, that 
affidavit can be found in bundle 1, file 9 and it’s affidavit number 3.  
 She was raped on the 22 December, in fact she’s a person who experienced both 
domestic violence incidents and various – and then that led ultimately to her being raped by 
the perpetrator.  She’s raped, she goes to Site B police station, she gives her statement there 



at the CSC and she’s ultimately then referred somewhere else for rape crisis.  What – in that 
incident just for that particular victim what would have been an ideal situation for her insofar as 
victim support, when she attended at the police station and reported a rape? 
MS VETTEN:   The ideal should be that you never have to go and announce to the client 
service centre at large I have been raped, you should immediately be taken to a separate 
private facility and now again you’ll find differences in how – in stations in terms of procedure 
they follow.  Some might have taken her to the Thuthuzela Care Centre immediately and called 
out whoever the FCS unit’s detective is on standby in order to assist her at the TCC centre, so 
she would do nothing at the station except wait to be picked up and  to get taken to the centre 
or you would have taken to a victim-friendly room and there you might have the officer take her 
statement there. 
 In some stations they will not permit – and I think is good – they don’t permit the CSC to 
take statements and I think that is ideal, one should never allow CSC to do more than perhaps 
just open up a skeleton docket because they are very good at – firstly, they don’t know how to 
take statements and they do them very badly and then you have a problem because the 
detective has taken a much better statement but now you now you have inconsistencies, so 
ideally it’s best to take somebody to a specialised centre.   

f possible, allow her to have her medical needs attended to first.  Post exposure 
prophylaxis to prevent HIV, for example, must be started no later than 72 hours and the sooner 
you start it the better so ideally you’d actually want all those stat dose given first before you 
then worry about things like medico-legal examinations and the like. 

So that would be ideal but a situation where you come to the CSC, you sit and wait in 
the queue, somebody shouts out next or what happened to you or sits an interrogates you in 
the charge office as to what happened or abandons you in the victim friendly room if it’s not 
locked is not ideal either and it’s not ideal which I think also happens is to subject you to 
untrained volunteers who sit in those victim friendly rooms who don’t necessarily know what 
they’re doing either. 
MS MAYOSI:   What she also complains about is that there was no discussion at all about 
prophylaxis drugs and HIV and her exposure to HIV as a result of the rape. 
 Now can you comment on what weaknesses do these experiences expose in terms of 
creating a sensitive environment for victims and dealing appropriately at police stations with 
the problem of secondary victimisation and what do you recommend by done at the police 
stations to not expose survivors of rape to this repeated trauma? 
MS VETTEN:   Well, I think people talk to each other about the experience they’ve had and so 
if you have a bad experience and you tell others it rapidly percolates through the community 
that this happens to you, don’t go there because this is how they’re going to treat you. 
 So poor treatment contributed underreporting so I think that would be the first thing you 
would – one of the reasons why you would want to create a better environment. 
 I mean, I think you would also ideally – and I know some stations space doesn’t always 
permit – but you would want the separate room where somebody can wait in order to be taken, 
if they’re going to have their statement taken that can be done in privacy and confidentiality 
away from what’s going on in the charge office.  
 I mean some instances you had many of the FCS units have their own offices which are 
away from the station altogether which is preferable but if the first point reception remains the 
station you’ve got to do something about the first point of contact which is the people in the 
CSC and if you look at the numbers in the police annual reports of the investment in training of 



people in the CSC versus the investment in training in FCS around sexual offences it’s 
incredibly disproportionate and there actually has to be more training invested I think in the 
people behind the desk because they are the first points of contract, they are the entry point, if 
you cannot get past them you will never get to the specialist TCC, you will never get to 
specialist detectives.   So they should be I think the first people trained. 
 One would also want possibly the police to consider developing some kind of little pro 
forma skeleton document or skeleton docket that requires just enough information to show 
there’s a prima facie case of rape and then that would be enough for them to be taken directly 
to hospital and spend no further time at the police station being questioned by anybody. 
MS MAYOSI:   Now that problem is a big one and I think it’s worth just demonstrating it again.  
There’s an experience by another witness called ET, her affidavit is also in bundle 1, file 9 and 
it’s affidavit 1.  She was raped by a taxi driver.  She was driven around and ultimately dumped 
in Mitchells Plain.  She goes to the Mitchells Plain – she lives in Khayelitsha, by the way – she 
goes to Mitchells Plain to report it, Mitchells Plain says no, go to Harare, she goes to Harare, 
Harare refers her to I think the Simelela Centre ultimately. 
 Now was there any reason why Mitchells Plain could not have driven her directly to 
Simelela and for that to have been process completely differently?  She had to go through the 
experience of going to Harare and then going elsewhere.  What again does that demonstrate 
about just a general problem of lack of sensitivity.  
MS VETTEN:   That’s far from confined to these areas and I think it’s a common problem, it’s 
called dumping, let me go and make you somebody else’s problem then I don’t have to deal 
with you.  So I think you’ll often find lots of – let me take you somewhere else then I don’t have 
to inconvenience myself taking you to the TCC because if you take someone to the TCC 
you’ve probably got a good four, five hour wait while examination and evidence collection is 
done, so you just send her to somebody else to go and make a problem of. 
 But there is -  in law there is absolute no reason why that officer could not have driven 
her directly to the TCC and done what was necessary because you often have detectives at 
some of the sites actually in site so everything necessary could have been done there, there 
was no reason for whoever was on duty that night not to have simply driven her there. 
MS MAYOSI:   This issue of jurisdiction, if you like, is a common one that witnesses not just 
survivors of rape have reported that they will have an experience, go to a police station, be told 
that no, we can’t deal with you, you live in Khayelitsha, go to another one.  That’s incorrect, as 
I understand it, police shouldn’t do that, they should be able to give you a case number, take 
your complaint, deal with you at any particular police station, is that correct? 
MS VETTEN:   That is my understanding and then all that then happens is that the docket is 
transferred to the station that you are at. 
MS MAYOSI:   Now lets’ talk about the trauma that the officers themselves – the officers, the 
investigating officers, detective as the FCS unit they themselves experience just by virtue o f 
their work.  The first time the Commission heard of that was when Dr Jeanine Josias testified 
and to an extent it was demonstrated really by Col Harri herself when she testified that the 
grimness and the difficulty of the work that they do. 
 Now there is of course - Col Harri made us understand that in terms of the rules and the 
standing orders there must be, I think, six months debriefing sessions and so on and there is a 
wellness programme that tends to be under-utilised because of certain perceptions.  Now can 
you comment on this.  If the investigating officers themselves are so traumatised do they stand 
a chance of being able to do the grim work that they must do in relation to sexual offences? 



MS VETTEN:   No, you can’t do a good job, I mean, that is why I was making that distinction 
between trauma and burnout because I think they have a problem around the content of their 
work, the traumatic content of their work but the conditions of their work are also far from 
desirable.   
 Now you can address the trauma but that is not necessarily going to address the 
burnout so what is going to be necessary is to try and do both things, is to address both any 
trauma that they may be displaying any systems but you’ve also got to do something about the 
circumstances of their work because these two are interacting with each other and you can 
help with the trauma but the other systems of burnout are not going to necessarily go away so 
they need to do something about both. 
 I mean, I think they need to think about is that when you design a service it’s usually for 
three criteria, is it accessible, can people get to it, is it acceptable, who are the people who are 
supposed to use the service find it acceptable and is it appropriate and it seems to me that the 
kind of help that the police offer could possibly be failing on the dimensions of appropriateness 
and accessibility because those perceptions are quite powerful and so I think what they must 
rather do then is think about how do we create a remedy or an intervention that is appropriate 
and is acceptable and there are also ways in which you can actually through the necessary 
training you can actually train people how to manage their own stress and trauma better to 
help them to try and identify what are the symptoms that are telling me I’m starting to suffer 
from vicarious trauma or I have got burnout, what are the strategies that I use in order to help 
maintain and control that, so you can teach people self-care which can help if they have a 
concern about going to tell their superiors about what’s being done and I’m not sure if there is 
much attention being paid to the self-care strategies around how you can manage that but that 
could be something very practical that the police could do and then quite possibly I think if you 
make it mandatory you might perhaps help reduce the stigma because everyone has to go 
through it, you’re not saying anybody has a problem. 
MS MAYOSI:   I was about to ask you that, would you support a recommendation that made it 
mandatory for everyone to really go for these debriefing sessions or these support sessions 
because – and in order to make sure that the – to make it not only mandatory but a 
performance issue linked to their performance would that not go somewhere in terms of 
addressing the stigma, take away the voluntary aspect of it and make it mandatory because 
they can’t perform their work really without this support. 
MS VETTEN:   I think that could be helpful because if you are a counsellor working in an 
organisation as I did and you are going for supervision and debriefing sometimes on a weekly 
basis so for them to be going once every six months is …(intervention) 
MS MAYOSI:   If that. 
MS VETTEN:   If that.  Plus, you know, there are other ways that you can help people deal with 
trauma and stress which don’t necessarily require them sitting having a one on one 
conversation with somebody if they find that an unacceptable intervention. 
 There are other ways in which you can debrief and distress people, other sorts of 
interventions that you can use so I think the police just need to get a bit more creative here and 
perhaps bring in people whether they use UCT or UWC or some of the other to look at how 
could we provide more very diverse acceptable and appropriate set of interventions for the 
police. 
MS MAYOSI:  Another witness’s experience I think revealed a gap in the Domestic Violence 
Act insofar as – or the national instruction that regulates that insofar as the duties of detectives 



in relation to domestic violence victims, I think she had a protection order, her husband 
violated her, he was arrested in April, it went to court in May, it was postponed, went to court in 
July, it was postponed, in September the husband just came back home and said thank you for 
withdrawing the case and she was shocked.  She had, of course, not been updated by the 
detective officer or by the detective in any way and that really demonstrates which you do say 
in your affidavit the gap in Domestic Violence Act, can you just talk to the Commission about 
any other issues that are demonstrated by that experience and also what recommendations 
should be put in place in the short term? 
MS VETTEN:   I mean, I think in that particular case there was a problem with how the 
detective did not communicate as he should have with what was going in the matter, he didn’t 
inform her when she needed to be at court or that the matter had been withdrawn and discuss 
with her her safety.  If we’ve now withdrawn the matter and he’s coming home how might he 
respond to you?   There was none of that.  So I think it is a gap but I think the difficulty 
generally with the Domestic Violence Act is that what we have crafted in South Africa is a 
policing and justice response and domestic violence is anything but a policing and justice 
problem, it’s a much broader social problem so in order to have made this policing and justice 
response effective it would need to be buttressed by a whole range of interventions that look at 
social dimensions. 
 So one of the recommendations I was thinking about it that it would be useful to see if 
one could develop not a Domestic Violence Act strategy but a policing strategy that looks at 
dealing with domestic violence much more broadly because not all women are going to want to 
pursue charges, for example, and that may genuinely be of their own volition and not because 
they’re being intimidated or for other reasons and I think one should look at can one develop a 
way of responding to domestic violence so that if somebody wants to withdraw you can sit 
down and say okay, why are you withdrawing is it because you are concerned about your 
safety, has he threatened you, is it concern about your economic dependence?  If it’s one of 
those, how do we address that and one has found prosecutors for example who have worked 
out quite good  strategies around how they dissuade women from withdrawing and they 
encourage them and give them the support that’s needed to pursue a case.  So one could do 
that. 
 You could also have a way – you could develop a system of if somebody is going to 
withdraw can we record it so that if it’s a third or fourth withdrawal we can say to somebody 
there’s clearly - you’re in danger here because this keeps on happening, how else can we look 
at your safety and there are some very interesting models that have been tested in the UK, for 
instance, that looked at repeat victimisation in domestic violence and it looked at almost 
graded responses so that involved the women and they also involved a range of other 
organisations so that by the – you know, so your first response might be okay you can 
withdraw and we’ll see this time but the second time around we need to give him a stronger 
message. 
 So I think there’s a need to just think more creatively, bring in more people to think 
about domestic violence and develop a much more comprehensive response than this current 
one of well, if we’re not going to arrest him, tough luck, you must just go and live with him. 
MS MAYOSI:   In NQ’s case the man who ultimately raped her, she actually had an interim 
protection order against him that she’s obtained I think the year before which wasn’t served on 
him until she ultimately followed up at the police station and realised that it hadn’t been served.  
What are the issues regarding the non-service of these protection orders? 



MS VETTEN:   There’s a very big problem and I think this again goes back to something that 
could have been dealt with in the Act but hasn’t.  The Act does allow for the courts to do a 
means test so that the sheriff where women cannot afford the sheriffs fees the court will pay 
that fee for her. 
 Now the Department of the Justice never developed the criteria for that means test and 
very, very few magistrate’s courts have shown the initiative to sit down and request a budget 
for their court to cover the costs of their sheriff’s fees. 
 Some have done it so it’s perfectly possible but the vast majority never have and so it’s 
very nice to make service the police’s problem.  
 So I do think one has to go back to justice and say this is something you need to think 
about and you need to start allocating the budget for service that the sheriffs do this because 
in some ways that is their responsibility, the service of documents because some stations – 
and I can speak in Gauteng, for example, have – there are some very good systems that they 
have in place for ensuring that the police serve protection orders whereas other stations have 
no systems whatsoever but they might have – and I know all stations can’t do this – they may 
have two or three officers whose job it is to serve protection orders, so that is what they do, 
they have a register, they sign, they’re supervised, very careful track is kept so I mean there 
are ways which one can develop systems if you’re going to have the police do it that make 
sure that they do it and you’ve got to check that they’ve got a vehicle and you’ve got to check 
that the police have budgeted to ensure that there is petrol in that vehicle, it’s not the end of 
the month and because there’s no budget no one’s vehicles can leave the station. 
MS MAYOSI:   And just lastly you said in your statement that you’d observed – if applied 
properly the number of incidents that are reflected in the 508A register should match the 
number of incidents that appear in the 508B and that there’s a discrepancy, what is that a 
function of and how would you recommend that that problem be dealt with, that the numbers 
between these two registers don’t correspond? 
MS VETTEN:   Well, that’s either somebody who hasn’t been properly trained and informed 
that you have to both or it’s somebody who is a bit slack so then you need to take whatever 
action is necessary in order to deal with slackness. 
 Maybe it is an issue of overload in which case you can think about do we have 
somebody who mainly just deals with the administrative side checking that the forms are filled 
in.  If somebody hasn’t had the time then maybe taking their pocket book and copying the 
details.  I mean there could be a range of ways to look at it so that remain within the ambit of 
the legal duties and the law but you also make it more efficient. 
MS MAYOSI:   You alluded to the need for further training and re-training of course in your 
recommendations. 
MS VETTEN:   Hm, ja right. 
MS MAYOSI:   I don’t have any further questions. 
NO FURTHER QUESTIONS BY MS MAYOSI 
COMMISSIONER:   Thanks, Ms Mayosi.  Mr Sidaki, we’re really running behind, are there 
many questions that you need or can you manage with a very short time?  Okay, thank you. 
CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR SIDAKI:   Thank you, Madame Chair.  Ms Vetten, just taking 
into account the many examples that were given to you of the service that was provided to 
survivors of domestic violence and sexual offences crimes in Khayelitsha, I have a copy of the 
FCS investigation mandate which was provided to the Commission by a witness yesterday, Mr 
Jan Swart, and the covering letter to that mandate which, Madame Chair, is found at bundle 



12, item 1, 23B. 
 In paragraph 2 of the covering letter to that mandate it is stated: 

“The main focus of the FCS is to provide sensitive professional service endearing 
to the victims of the FCS related crimes.” 

Given the examples provided to you, would you say that the FCS in Khayelitsha has achieved 
in its main focus as provided in that letter? 
MS VETTEN:   Not on a consistent basis.  They may be able to get it right on a couple of 
individual cases but one can see it’s not the normal routine given those particular examples. 
MR SIDAKI:   Now if you go to the investigation mandate itself which is annexure A to that 
letter it refers to – and I’m not going to go through it in detail but the various aspects of cases 
that the FCS unit should investigate relating to Domestic Violence Act and there’s a number of 
them. 
MS VETTEN:   Ja. 
MR SIDAKI:    And my question to you is the general evidence before the Commission 
certainly from the station commanders and the detective branch commanders in Khayelitsha 
was that the Domestic Violence Act is solely the competency of the police stations and 
certainly not the FCS unit but it seems to be not the case, so there seems to be a 
misunderstanding of what FCS should actually provide and as versus the police station.  Your 
comment on that? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes and it may be a self-preservation mechanism.  If you have too few 
detectives you’re going to consciously seek ways to limit your mandate all the time so given 
how overloaded they are I’m not surprised that they think domestic violence might not be their 
mandate, that might be genuine ignorance but it might also be let’s try and keep our workload 
manageable and women are going to withdraw anyway so not a priority. 
MR SIDAKI:   And certainly in the Commission’s recommendations surely that that aspect 
should be addressed because the full mandate of FCS unit should be carried out. 
MS VETTEN:   Absolutely because as you can see from their mandate part of it is investigating 
breaches of a protection order so that clearly falls within their mandate.   
 I mean, another question that they could think about, although it’s not their mandate, is 
whether they shouldn’t actually be investigating rape homicides and domestic violence from 
the sides because it’s quite clear that when an ordinary detective investigates a homicides 
which was an (indistinct)  femicide they don’t ask about that issue of domestic violence. 
 So I think there needs to be some linkage between also looking at homicides within a 
domestic violence context and who is going to investigate those and who has the knowledge 
around how you investigate the relationship between domestic violence and homicide and the 
same with the rape homicide actually. 
MR SIDAKI:   Yes and I think that came quite clearly in the evidence of Col Harri who testified 
where she was co-opted to investigate the Anene Booysen case in Bredasdorp where she was 
really brought into a competency that wasn’t hers but she did quite well in that. 
MS VETTEN:   Hm. 
MR SIDAKI:   Now just another aspect I’d like to cover with you is the issue of performance 
measurement also in relation to the two main subjects here, the domestic violence and sexual 
violence cases.  It seems that the unit commanders, FCS branch commanders are measured – 
their performance is measured based on a reduction of these crimes yet, on the other hand, 
we know from the various reports that have provided to the Commission and according to your 
testimony there’s a prevalence of underreporting of crimes so there seems to be a conflict that 



are at play here. Your comment on that? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes, absolutely and I think numerous organisations that deal with violence 
against women have complained, longly, loudly, repeatedly to no effect about this because it’s 
a perverse incentive. 
 I mean, another thing you may not be aware of is that performance bonuses are 
attached to the reduction of those crimes which is really a very perverse incentive. 
 And also things – you want to measure performance, you don’t – it’s not useful to look 
at it in terms of quantity how many things because you completely miss the qualitative 
dimension and so much of this is about the quality of what you do.  So I would really 
recommend that they (a) when it comes to rape and domestic violence remove altogether –
because it’s actually a cabinet decision this reduction in interpersonal contact crimes of 4 to 
7% every year, they remove it for these two crimes because it’s really inappropriate given what 
we know about underreporting and that they completely rework the performance measures in 
this area.  You know, it might be better to be looking at things like number of arrests, how well 
they – and because they neglect stranger rape because it requires so much more effort they 
could be looking at that. 
 I mean, the other thing they should be looking at in my opinion is the one kind of rape 
that is well within the police’s power to potentially prevent is serial rape, so possibly they 
should be looking at how well – how quickly does it take them to identify a serial rapist, how 
quickly does it take them to apprehend that person because that’s very much about quality of 
investigation. 
 And then I think they should be looking at ways around the interaction with the 
complainant.  Like  really important performance measure would be how often did you stay in 
touch with the complainant?  I mean, that’s repeated complaints and if you made that a 
performance measure you can be very sure that it will happen. 
 You could make another performance measure which was a complaint in Dr Josias’ 
testimony around how many meetings at the Thuthuzela Care Centre or other stakeholder 
meetings did you attend, what was your contribution? 
 So there would be other ways in which you could look at measuring performance which 
would do better to the detection which is really their core function, not prevention. 
MR SIDAKI:    Just another aspect is what role could the for instance the Department of 
Community Safety play in the development of victim friendly rooms in the various police 
stations in Khayelitsha? 
MS VETTEN:   I think provincially and in fact nationally there needs to be a policy around 
victim friendly rooms because if you read police documentation all you need to do is have a 
room and there’s confusion between the appearance of a thing with the substance of a thing.  
The fact that you have room with a label on it says victim friendly room does not make it a 
victim friendly room. 
 So there needs to be policy developed around – if you’re going to have people in that 
room and they’re volunteers, what criteria do you need to fulfil in order to a volunteer?  What 
kind of training do you need to be a volunteer?  What kind of supervision and support should 
you be getting?   What kind of remuneration, stipend, whatever, should you be getting?  Do 
you work 24/7?  Who comes to collect you?  Because there have been quite a lot some of 
these conflicts around in Gauteng and that kind of policy I think would be incredibly useful 
insuring that if there - there’s more than just a room there, there’s a service there. 
COMMISSIONER:   How are you doing, Mr Sidaki, we… 



MR SIDAKI:   I’m done, Madame Chair, thank you. 
NO FURTHER QUESTIONS BY MR SIDAKI 
COMMISSIONER:   Are you sure?  Thank you very much.  Mr Arendse? 
CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR ARENDSE:   Ms Vetten, good afternoon and thank you for the 
work that you do for a long time now and in relation to this Commission of Inquiry. 
 Have you in considering what recommendations to make to the Commission have you 
looked at the national development plan and the recommendations for a new police service or 
new policing and applied that to – in your thoughts to any recommendations? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes, I’ll make a comment which is that I think that the national development 
plan around policing perhaps could have been better thought through in relation to its gender 
dimension so I think there’s a bit of a weakness there in terms of the national development 
plan. 
 But one of the things that does talk to it, which I think could be useful, is how it talks 
about the need to demilitarise the police, take it back from a force to a service which I could 
indeed be helpful, that is – would be a useful suggestion. 
 I think they talk about training.  They also talk about great involvement of citizens and I 
mean I spoke earlier about how we do monitoring and then we use – we draw on some of the 
work around citizenship and monitoring in the national development plan.  So I think it does 
have some guidance but obviously necessarily contain the specifics of what needs to be done. 
MR ARENDSE:  Ja, I think like most plans or any plan. 
MS VETTEN:   Exactly. 
MR ARENDSE:  Especially plans of the ruling party, it’s full of principles and, you know – but 
perhaps lacking sometimes in detail and implementation. 
MS VETTEN:   Ja. 
MR ARENDSE:  But I just asked that because essentially the message is that we need to 
professionalise the police service and I was just wondering and I don’t have a mandate for this, 
I don’t have instructions for this, but not surprisingly every expert sitting where you are sitting, 
the first thing they say the police needs more training, further training and that’s pretty obvious. 
 But I was just wondering that, you know, because our constitution provides for the 
respect, promotion and protection of very important rights especially in relation to women and 
children, disabled and the age and then of course requires laws to be implemented or to be 
formulated, passed in Parliament and then implanted and increasingly, like the DVA Act and 
some other Acts it requires a – it imposes criminal sanctions which then involves the police but 
it seems to me that the problem is that especially with those kind currently in the police service 
and even “worse” those who have in the service for many years they’re either unable or 
unwilling to really adapt and to apply these laws in a way that the constitution requires them to 
do and that’s why I asked you about the NDP because should we not be looking at the 
recruitment in the service now where you, for example, put out an advert and you are looking 
for members of an FCS unit, these are the requirements.  You don’t need to have a matric, you 
know, you can go for training or maybe go to the college and, you know, and suitably qualified 
persons could then be appointed to those posts.  

Should we not go to that stage where – and also in relation to domestic violence – 
although I heard the discussion about the mandate of the FCS may well include also domestic 
violence but you seem to be unsure whether the two should be coupled so that in a way you 
almost build into the institution, into the police service, I’m going into the police and that old 
notion that if you want to become a police officer you want to catch criminals and if they shoot 



at you, you want to shoot at them and that kind of notion.  
So you’re going into the service, I am going to be - you know, like other departments, 

the Department of Social Development has certain sections certain departments and we know 
that some of them also are - you know, they’re stationed in the police at the police station also 
to assist with domestic violence and FCS unit that provides support.  Would that be something 
that one should think of, could think of, can it work?  So you just start off from a clean slate and 
get a new cadre of police officers into – and in that way also build sort of some kind of - not 
independence but some kind of autonomy because what you find now, today I’m working, you 
know, as Vispol at the Community Service Centre, tomorrow I’m doing something else.  So 
there’s no specialist – maybe that’s the word I’ve been looking – some kind of specialisation 
within the police service. 
MS VETTEN:   Well, FCS specialised and there are quite a lot of – if I understand your 
question correctly – and they do have recruitment policies and from what I understand they do 
have psychometric testing in place in order to ensure that the people who apply fits a certain 
calibre, demonstrate the necessary characteristics or whatever.  How well that may be in being 
effected on a consistent basis, I don’t know.   What they’re doing about people who may 
already be there who might not be suitable, I don’t know.  Certainly in the past FCS used to be 
a punishment unit.  If you were annoyed with someone you sent them to FCS because it had 
quite a low standing within the police.   
 So yes, one of its names was the nappy squad, for example.  So I think you obviously 
want to look at criteria for admission for people to enter into the unit but you also want to look 
at their working conditions to make it an attractive place in which people want to work but you 
also have to balance that with the fact that specialisation sometimes limits people’s career 
advancements which has been part of the reason for the loss of a lot of FCS units because 
you can only go so far and you’ll never go any further in the police.  So they would need to look 
at how specialisation can give you an ongoing good career trajectory within the police as well. 
 And I think you also have to look at not everyone can do this work permanently so you 
would need to want to create, as I was talking about earlier, because of the potential for 
vicarious trauma you want to also create pathways for people so that they cannot be 
overexposed to very difficult content.  So I think it’s a range of different things that you would 
need to do. 
MR ARENDSE:  Because we heard the evidence and you read the evidence of Col Harri.   Col 
Harri herself had actually been appointed as a station commander and the current Provincial 
Commissioner and asked her, implored her to come and head up the FCS unit and she 
testified how difficult, which contributes to the understaffing.  She testified how difficult it was to 
recruit or to persuade or to encourage people to come and work in the unit. 
MS VETTEN:   Hm. 
MR ARENDSE:  The evidence of the station commanders in relation to survivors of sexual 
offences misconduct has been that they don’t in fact – and if they have, it shouldn’t happen, 
that’s been the evidence, when they walk into the police station there would be a floor 
manager or the person sitting at the Community Service Centre would direct them to the FCS 
and in some instances the survivor would immediately be taken to the – ja, to the centre.  
That’s been the evidence.  I’m not sure, Madame Chair, the two witnesses’ statements that 
have been referred to by Ms Mayosi whether – they didn’t give evidence. 
COMMISSIONER:   No, they didn’t testify. 
MR ARENDSE:  Those are statements, ja. 



COMMISSIONER:   Correct. 
MR ARENDSE:   I do know about the one, the evidence is still clear in my mind about the 
protection order and the failure to provide that protection. 
 Ms Vetten, you will also know that when the Commission of Inquiry was established the 
kind of deficiencies within the FCS unit and the way domestic violence resulted in – or in or at 
the police stations, that was not a self-standing complaint which formed the basis for the 
establishment of the Commission. 
MS VETTEN:   No, I think it was part of the general difficulties that the community had. 
MR ARENDSE:  Yes.  And you will also know that much – certainly in relation to the evidence 
that was given and will be given today again by Prof Artz actually refers to and relies on 
information  that one finds in the inspectorate reports of the police themselves, the failure to 
complete the registers and so on. 
MS VETTEN:   Yes and I think that’s the astounding thing is why the police comment on this 
but nothing happens.  I mean, if the police management themselves can see that this is a 
problem but nothing is done about it, that’s really strange. 
MR ARENDSE:  So it’s not – now I think that’s a trend also in relation to other issues that have 
arisen. 
MS VETTEN:   Yes. 
MR ARENDSE:  Here in the Commission of Inquiry.  So again the problem here as with other 
aspects that were identified by the inspectorate in the Tshabalala report in various other 
reports is the police are pretty good at detecting or identifying these problems but the problem 
is how do you deal with it, how do you manage it and how do you actually stop it from being a 
recurring complaint year in and year out. 
MS VETTEN:   Hm. 
MR ARENDSE:  Thank you, I don’t have any further questions. 
NO FURTHER QUESTIONS BY MR ARENDSE 
COMMISSIONER:   Thank you, anything in re-examination, Ms Bornman? 
RE-EXAMINATION BY MS BORNMAN:    Just one question, thank you, Commissioner.  
 Ms Vetten, you spoke earlier about the adaptation of the existing DV audit tool to adapt 
it in a way that would be better able to measure the sort of nuances of implementation of the 
Domestic Violence Act. 
 Now thinking about services to victims of domestic violence and sexual violence and the 
centres and victim friendly rooms and so on, do you think that DV tool could be adapted to also 
measure aspects of that kind of service delivery? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes very definitely.  And I said if you also add components where you can 
speak to people in the CPF organisations and whoever is in that room you would add to the 
picture. So I think you could really – the limits are your creativity in terms of what needs to be 
assessed. 
MS BORNMAN:   Thank you, Commissioners, I have no more questions. 
NO FURTHER QUESTIONS BY MS BORNMAN 
COMMISSIONER:   Thank you, Ms Bornman.  Mr Pikoli? 
MR PIKOLI:   Just one question.  Now given your suggestions as to how to improve the audit 
tool do you think that the CPFs have got the capacity to exercise oversight at local level? 
MS VETTEN:   Yes, that training I spoke about that we tested in Gauteng, we actually 
developed a little tool for them, you can make it a really easy one pager.  I mean if people 
know what they are looking for and you sit with them and show them this is what the register 



should look like, it’s really not difficult and it’s well within I think the CPF’s scope and abilities.  
You’ve just got to make sure that they are not too acculturated to the police where they now 
see themselves and extension that the police have forgotten that they’re an oversight body. 
COMMISSIONER:   Well, thank you very much indeed, Ms Vetten, for your very helpful report 
and your testimony this morning, you may now stand down. 
 


